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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the financial exploitation of vulnerable adults; relating to the definitions of 
abuse, financial exploitation, and vulnerable adult; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: 3 Attachments 

Chair J. Lee: (0:00-3:40) Brought the meeting to order and introduced the bill. All members 
present. 
Senator Anderson: Is there a specific reason why you chose clear and convincing evidence 
instead of preponderance of evidence in this case? 
Chair J. Lee: I relied on the advice of Legislative Council. I will defer to them. 
Michelle Gayette, Elder Rights Program Administrator for Aging Services Division, 
provided neutral testimony, please see attachment #1 (4:00-9:55) 
Chair J. Lee: What is the difference between these proposed amendments? 
Ms. Gayette: The difference is in amendment A we add the definition of vulnerable adult to 
the proposed civil remedies section, changes it to say protect oneself from financial 
exploitation. Amendment B we take out that definition and do not use that proposed 
language. 
Senator Heckaman: Ms. Gayette, of those 2 amendments which do you prefer? 
Ms. Gayette: I prefer amendment A. Forgive me, I meant to say I prefer amendment B. 
Johnathon Alm, Attorney Department of Human Services: I think for the ease of 
everybody, having one definition of vulnerable adult works best 
Chair J. Lee: Will this help us do more in these circumstances for financially exploited adults? 
Mr. Alm: What is being proposed will not limit the department's ability to conduct the 
vulnerable adult protective services. The civil side, remedies is taking it out of the department 
and allowing private citizens the ability to sue and collect, and recover resources. 
Chair J. Lee: Told a banking story about an exploited adult. (13:00-14:35) How do we allow 
someone with a concern to come to you and be able to see if there is financial abuse going 
on? 
Mr. Alm: I don't know, but we receive reports from institutions, private citizens, friends, 
coworkers, and we investigate those as well. 
Chair J. Lee: Your office is the one to which that should be reported? 
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Ms. Gayette: That is correct, we are working to educate members of victim's services 
providers organizations and law enforcement on vulnerable adult protective services, on filing 
reports, whether or not they believe there's civil or criminal matters happening. 
Mr. Alm: To answer Senator Anderson's question on wording, I'm not sure why legislative 
council picked clear and convincing evidence over preponderance of evidence. Clear and 
convincing is a higher standard of proof, that somebody would have to prove to get those 
civil damages. 
Senator Anderson: Please explain the three levels of evidence and how they differ. 
Mr. Alm: On the civil side there are levels: preponderance of evidence, is it over 50% to win 
your case, clear and convincing is when the evidence leads to you to a firm belief or 
conviction that the allegations are true Higher standard of proof, requires more than a 
preponderance of evidence but something less that proof beyond reasonable doubt. Criminal 
is proof beyond reasonable doubt. 
Mike Chaussee, Associate State Director for Advocacy with AARP ND testified in 
favor, please see attachment #2 (19:05-22:35) 21 :25 people over 50 have 83% nations 
wealth, 
Chair J. Lee: Any comments proposed amendments? 
Mr. Chaussee: We would like more people involved, but understand that the definitions 
might get messy, we wouldn't fight them at all. In response to V-Chair Larsen's' question, 
there are a variety of potential scams being worked in North Dakota at this time. 
Committee discussed having received calls like this (23:20-26:30) 
Mr. Chaussee: Those are scary things to think about, but I'd like to point out that research 
shows that about half of vulnerable adults are exploited by people they know. 
Further committee discussion about phone calls. (27: 15-28:50) 
Chair J. Lee: Merchant and church stories (28:55-31 :55) 
Senator Heckaman: Fresh seafood story (31:55-33:10) 
Chair J. Lee: Closed the public hearing. 
Senator Anderson: I'll move to adopt amendment B. 
Senator Kreun: I'll second. 
Senator Kreun: Described a personal situation, would this bill be able to address that? 
Mr. Alm: This bill on page 2, the new section with civil remedies would address, or give right 
to sue those individuals who benefited from taking advantage of a vulnerable adult. 
Senator Kreun: That's what the law enforcement said they couldn't do at that time. They 
had no recourse, this would give them some of that. 
Mr Alm: The family could have reported to adult protective services; the department would 
do their review. 
Senator Kreun: Is there anything else this will do to alleviate that? Or is that the crux? 
Mr. Alm: That's the crux. 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion Passed 7-0-0. 
Senator Anderson: Before we proceed with the bill , I would like to clarify the language used. 
Most proceedings use preponderance of evidence. My concern is if somebody is diverting 
money regularly, and says they had a good reason for this, but the judge doesn't think so, 
clear and convincing vs preponderance. I'd like clarification before we proceed. 
Chair J. Lee: Ian, find out what the drafter intended. 
V-Chair Larsen: I would like clarification, this does not make the bank teller who knows the 
person financially, a mandated reporter? 
Chair J. Lee: They're shaking their heads no. 
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Karen Tyler, North Dakota Securities Commissioner: I came to hear discussion; but on a 
national level we just adopted a report model that puts a reporting clause in place for broker
dealers and investment advisors. We have industry support on this. It's a new development, 
that's something that's taking place in securities world. A stock broker who suspects a client 
is being manipulated , they have a reporting obligation up the chain to adult protective 
services, to the securities regulator in the state. It also provides them with immunity, so they 
avoid liability; other thing it allows is a freeze on the asset. They don't have to carry out the 
instruction of the client. The broker freeze is for 15 days. This gives them a timeframe to step 
in. We don't expect pushback from industry. 
Chair J. Lee: Would you be opposed to an amendment for that? Put North Dakota first on 
the list. 
Ms. Tyler: I can show you a model, a separate piece of legislation might be best. (Model 
provided via email after the hearing, please see attachment #3) 
Senator Heckaman: I have unlimited bills until Monday. 
Chair J. Lee: We would like to review that and see where it goes 
Senator Heckaman: I would suggest we don't connect it to this. It would muddy it up and 
put in the opportunity for it to get killed . 
Chair J. Lee: We'll wait for the afternoon 
V-Chair Larsen: Is there data reporting on how often those folks talk to their financial advisor 
compared to the teller? There's a lot of funds that can be drained through the checkbook. It 
seems like it's a higher level. 
Ms. Tyler: We have to fight this on all fronts . We have the broker-dealer industry and 
investment advisor industry willing to fight with us. It's early, we don't have a track record in 
other states, I think there are five states that have introduced it. 
Chair J. Lee: Anybody who has a brokerage account, in order for that title to be transferred 
it goes through the advisor. 
Ms. Tyler: Absolutely, the financial advisor is very well positioned to see what's going on. 
They'd have to process the trade, but freeze the asset. They wouldn 't have to distribute the 
money from the account. Then they would take it up the chain to their supervisors. 
Senator Piepkorn: The financial advisors aren't so guilt free themselves sometimes. 
Ms. Tyler: We do have that element, we deal with misconduct, much of the exploitation 
comes from the caregiver. 
Senator Heckaman: I'll be out of committee in the morning, but I'll be speaking to the 
bankers. 
Chair J. Lee: Let's set amend aside, until we hear back about language. Closed public 
hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to the financial exploitation of vulnerable adults; relating to the definitions of 
abuse, financial exploitation, and vulnerable adult; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: II 0 Attachments 

Chair J. Lee: Opened the committee discussion on SB 2163. All members were present. 

Intern explained the language choices. 

The committee discussed the merits of language choice. Most exploitation cases leave a 
paper trail which has more weight in court. 

Senator Kreun: Could we rehash the purpose of this bill, it seems good to me, but I'd like 
clarity. What are we accomplishing? 

Chair J. Lee: Let's take a minute on the bill page 2, section 4. A vulnerable adult has been 
exploited, an action may be brought by the vulnerable adult, guardian, someone on behalf of 
the adult, or rep of estate. An action of financial exploitation must be provided by clear and 
convincing evidence, which is a higher standard, but the penalty is going to be tougher too. 

Senator Anderson: The difference here, if someone actually stole from a vulnerable adult, 
they could be prosecuted for a crime, but most of these things aren't actual crimes. To say 
they committed a crime is too far, but took the money and shouldn't have, then there is 
recourse. 

Senator Kreun: Story about vulnerable adult (6:50-7:45) 

Senator Anderson: What we heard from agency the section is outside their authority, so the 
agency isn't going to pursue them, but you or friends could bring civil action. 

Chair J. Lee: Story about farm inheritance (8:30 -9:35). 
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Senator Kreun: This instance nobody knew about the transfer of the money, and she 
gradually took everything. This would give then an indication on how to proceed. 
 
Senator Anderson: One more statement about the level of evidence, if it actually is a crime 
then it rises to ‘beyond a reasonable doubt’. Then the State’s Attorney gets involved.   
 
Chair J. Lee: If we look at number 3 on page 2, it talks about the court being able to award 
damages; number 4, an action commenced within 4 years. This is the heart of the bill. 

 
V-Chair Larsen: I move do pass as amended. 
Senator Kreun: I second. 
Motion passed 7-0-0 
Carrier Sen. Kreun.  
Chair J. Lee: closed the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-25.2 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the financial exploitation of vulnerable adults; to 
amend and reenact subsection 7 of section 50-25.2-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the definition of financial exploitation; and to provide a penalty. 

Minutes: achments 

Chair J. Lee: Asked Greg Nelson to explain what he was considering for the alternative 
rather than the inclusion of the two sections. 

Greg Nelson, Detective, Insurance Department Fraud Unit: One of the things that we 
were looking at is definition of a vulnerable adult as it is written in chapter 12. We had a case 
where a 92-year-old victim had passed away and her power of attorney was going through 
records and noticed that she was writing a lot of checks to her insurance agent. One of the 
checks alone was $38,000. In the previous three years she had written $103,000 in checks 
to this agent. She did have a lot of good records and she also had some documentation of 
friendship. He would mail her greeting cards on a regular basis. In those cards he was 
constantly talking about how bad things were in his like and how down he was as well as 
thanking her for being such a wonderful person etc. It was obvious to us that he we taking 
advantage of this lady and with his power of attorney. I met with Michelle at agent services 
and she agreed , but with the way the definition was written and the fact that she was not 
committed to the nursing home by a doctor at that time she was not a "vulnerable adult". This 
is something that needs to be addressed. At the end of the day we were not able to do 
anything to this guy but take his insurance license away. I took some training in Fargo from 
a prosecutor named Paul Greenwood and he focuses on financial crimes and exploitation of 
vulnerable adults. One of the things he talked about was making sure that we have a crystal 
clear definition that is broad yet accurate. They offered a solution of adding an age limit so 
they qualify at that point. It doesn't mean mental facilities aren't there but you are at the 
highest risk and when you get older in life you are in a position that someone might try to 
take advantage of you one way or another. We decided that making an amendment to the 
definition out of Chapter 12 would fit the criminal version for us. 

(4:24) Chair J. Lee: (Clarified some information that was expected bye mail.) 
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(5:05) Senator Piepkorn: On the conversation at the presentation you were at, that led to 
this bill and enhancing this definition? 

Senator Anderson: We have a definition of vulnerable adult here, but Chapter 12 that you 
are talking about is an entirely different statute and you are talking about move this definition 
to Chapter 12 or are you wanting us to use the Chapter 12 definition? 

Greg Nelson: We would like to separate the definition and modify the one in Chapter 12 and 
not have anything to do with the one you have in Chapter 50. 

Senator Anderson: So you like this definition better than the one in Chapter 12? 

Sara Behrens, Attorney, Insurance Department: We would like to modify the definition 
that is currently in Title 12.1 so that we can encompass a situation like officer Nelson was 
discussing. Currently the language in Title 12.1 separates it out. They have a definition for 
disabled adult and then one for vulnerable elderly adult. (Read definition) We couldn't fit this 
particular victim into that definition because she had not had any diagnosis but she was 
clearly taken advantage of by this gentleman. What we are proposing is taking out disabled 
adult and vulnerable elderly adult and just making it vulnerable adult and having 2 different 
possibilities, so we used a person who is at least 60 years of age, and we picked 60 because 
that was already there (Examples given: CA defined elder as any person who is 65 years or 
older, OR defines vulnerable person 65 or order, RI defines elder as an individual 60 years 
or older, ID defines elder as a person 65 years or older). 

Senator Piepkorn: You're mixing in 2 things, vulnerable and elder. 

Sara Behrens: It just depends on the state and what term they use. We're in the same type 
statute and being able to prosecute for exploitation and abuse of older, vulnerable individuals. 

Chair J. Lee: If there is a person older than whatever we pick, and there is no diagnosis, and 
it is believed someone is taking advantage of them, with this change, who can bring an 
action? And, how do we determine that that person doesn't have subversive motives? 

Sara Behrens: For what we are talking about, these would be crimes, so a prosecutor would 
prosecute them. Those two definitions would be used for the endangering of a vulnerable 
adult for 12.1-31-07 and exploitation of a vulnerable adult in the following section. 

Chair J. Lee: Is the Attorney General's office going to get excited when we change the 
definition for our narrow purpose when they are on a broad purpose? 

Sara Behrens: This shouldn't change what is currently being prosecuted. The next section, 
the person 18 years of age or older, encompasses the rest of the disable adult. A person 60 
years of age or older is obviously going to encompass everyone in that vulnerable elderly 
adult category. We are still keeping both categories, but putting them into 1 term and 
broadening it a bit to protect those older individuals in order to have a greater ability to go 
after exploitation and abuse of those individuals who don't necessarily have a diagnosed 
condition but we could prove they are being taken advantage of or abused. 

(12:17) Senator Anderson: From legislative council's prospective, this bill wasn't designed 
to modify Chapter 12. Do you think we can put that modification of Chapter 12 in here and 
then refer to that in the definition that we use, is that what you are suggesting? 
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Sara Behrens: We would suggest doing a separate bill. We would not want to risk either 
definition or bill by putting them together. 

Senator Anderson: But you are suggesting bill to fix Chapter 12 to be what you would want 
and then we would reference that definition in this section, is that your preference? 

Sara Behrens: You would be free to take these definitions if you feel that they would be 
appropriate for that to refer back in Title 50. Our concern is more with the prosecution of 
these types of crimes and not necessarily the OHS side. 

Greg Nelson: In order to qualify for some of the services these people had to meet the 
definition of vulnerable adult which is quite a bit different than what our focus is here under 
criminal. This change will definitely help us go after people. 

Senator Piepkorn: Is this our job, in Human Services, to determine this legal definition? 

ChairJ. Lee: I'm wondering if this may be more appropriately heard in Judiciary Committee? 
I want to blend this so we're not fighting about the definitions. I do think it needs to be done 
but I don't know if it's right for us to put it in here. Maybe Senator Heckaman could introduce 
it. I'm really glad you brought it to our attention. 

Greg Nelson: I appreciate that. 

Senator Kreun: (Reiterated the concerns over taking a bill for Human Services and changing 
the definitions and stepping into criminal prosecution.) 

John Godfread, Insurance Commissioner: There was some discussion for potential fixes 
to this which alerted officer Nelson to some ideas. I do not think we are asking for this 
committee to take it up on this issue but we did want to bring it to Chairman Lee's and this 
committee's attention. I think it does belong in judiciary, but we wanted to have this 
discussion and see if there is any appetite within the committee to look at doing another bill. 
They are related. Our goal isn't to mess up HS; our goal is to look at protecting consumers. 

(18:27) Senator Heckaman: Knowing what you know about the criminal section, when we 
look at the definition we have here on Page1, Line 19-20 (reads), that woman would not have 
been considered under here. So we have to fix this. We've still got a problem and there would 
be no criminal prosecution for the exploited. 

Greg Nelson: On Chapter 50, Michelle might know more than I do if the mental or functional 
impairment is defined in there, but on its surface, I would agree with that. 

Senator Kreun: Don't get me wrong, I'd like to prosecute every one on its fullest. The issue 
is if this bill constitutes criminal charges. The question then becomes if we want it to be a 
criminal charge. It is a civil case at this point in time. I would love to put that in there but it still 
doesn't create enough for a criminal case. 

Senator Heckaman: That's not our job here. I think that is their job in that other section of 
the code. Our job here is just to address the civil part of it. They are bringing up a point where 
they need help too. That is the point on this. We've got to fix both of these so the wording is 
correct in both of them so that we get the civil action and the criminal action done for that 
poor woman that did not get anything, or whoever. 
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Senator Kreun: This new bill would cover the situation I was in, but how do we do this so • 
we stay on the civil side and we can help them get into the criminal side. 

Senator Heckaman: Just by the chapter of the code it is in. 

Sara Behrens: Yes, SB 2163 will be only civil, and I don't want to mess up the definition 
there with what we are trying to do in case that affects them somehow. They might have 
reasoning for requiring some sort of finding for physical or mental impairment. We wouldn't 
need a determination under the civil side in order to prosecute. If we have the evidence to fit 
under the criminal, then we can still prosecute even if it does not meet the civil definition. 
These definitions that we are proposing would relate only to these criminal actions in a 
separate bill. We're look to bring this committee's attention to this other related issue and we 
are looking for someone in this committee to sponsor a new bill to judiciary. 

Chair J. Lee: We did amend this bill with amendment B that removed the definition of 
vulnerable adult so with the amendment we are dealing with what you are already talking 
about. It there a need to do anything that we have not already done in regard to changing 
things? 

Sara Behrens: I know that officer Nelson has reached out to Michelle in HS so we would 
probably want to discuss it with them because we do not want to step on any toes there and 
cause any issues for what their responsibilities are by trying to sync it with the definition here. 
It is not necessary that they be the same. The bill that we are proposing would apply only to 
these sections. 

Chair J. Lee: In the amendment that we adopted were proposed by them. 

Senator Heckaman: On that amendment, on page 2, after line 20, insert "for the purpose of 
this section vulnerable adult means ... ". We still don't have that individual included because 
she had neither a mental or functional impairment. 

Chair J. Lee: We adopted amendment B. 

Senator Heckaman: I was looking at A. 

Chair J. Lee: I'm glad we've had this discussion, but is there anything we need to do 
differently than we have already done or are well all comfortable with moving on the way we 
did it? 

V-Chair Larsen: I'm quite comfortable with it. I thought that, as we go through code and 
definitions, the definitions are supposed to flow throughout code. I didn't know we'd have 
different definitions for the same thing. 

Sara Behrens: There are times when definitions aren't exactly the same and that is why it 
says "in this chapter". We could use a different term if you felt more comfortable with it. 

Chair J. Lee: I don't think they need to be identical as long the purpose for that chapter is 
met. 

Senator Anderson: If you want to use the common definition, then this chapter should 
reference the other section of the code and the definition. Often times we have a definition 
for one section of the code. 

• 
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Chair J. Lee: (Reviewed the amendments and how the bill would read .) 

Senator Kreun: We're not even defining vulnerable adult. 

Chair J. Lee: No we are not. 

Sara Behrens: So there won't be a definition of vulnerable adult in Title 50 any longer? Or 
are you keeping it the same? 

Committee Discussion: The committee discussed what is being done with the bill and 
whether it will be sufficient for everyone involved. Senator Heckaman volunteered to take 
care of making sure the criminal side is addressed . Senator Piepkorn was concerned about 
how it might be defined for the criminal side and Sara Behrens explained again how the 
wording was derived. The committee then debated how they felt about age 65 and what 
would be best and determined that it was up to the insurance department as to what would 
be best. They discussed the example of the woman officer Nelson and how long it must have 
gone on. 

Chair J. Lee: Closed the hearing on SB 2163. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2163 

Page 1, line 3, replace "subsections 1," with "subsection" 

Page 1, line 3, remove ", and 17" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "definitions" with "definition" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "abuse," 

Page 1, line 4, remove ", and vulnerable adult" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 10 

Page 1, line 13, after "means" insert "use or receipt of services provided by the vulnerable adult 
without just compensation," 

Page 1, remove lines 17 through 21 

Renumber accordingly 
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D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the definition of financial exploitation of vulnerable adults; and to 
provide a penalty. 

Minutes: 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Opened the hearing on SB 2163. 

Senator J. Lee: Introduced the bill. Told a story about how this can happen where people 
that are elderly get taken advantage of for financial gain. This is meant to define what 
financial exploitation and what the civil remedies might be and what a vulnerable adult is. 
We want to be able to protect these individuals. It is important to look at protecting our 
vulnerable citizens. 

Representative Jones: I have a question on the last paragraph of the bill. It says that action 
must be commenced within four years after the plaintive discovered or should have 
discovered. What did the four years come from? 

Senator Lee: I don 't recall . It was done with the help of other individuals. I can check this 
out for you. There were a variety of stake holders that we are the hearing on the Senate 
side. If that turns out not to be the right number of years you will figure out what it should be. 

Representative Maragos: Would the four years relate to the statute of limitations? 

Senator Lee: I don't know. 

Rep. Satrom: Are there any other states that have this in place? 

Senator Lee: We were not looking at any other states. This had input from various 
departments that see these kinds of things develop plus legal counsel. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: There are times where elderly people may want to start to 
distribute their assets before their death and they might want to gift some things. How do we 
avoid not stepping on that? 

Senator Lee: That certainly is not the intention here. This is a gray area here. Right now 
we don't have the kinds of protections that we should have. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: The burden of proof is clear and convincing evidence which is 
good. 

Senator Lee: Discussed history that had happened with her dad. The securities industry 
has stepped up to the plate as well. That is where it is often seen. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Is there a watch dog agency that would help aid someone that 
suspects they might be in this kind of circumstance? Or is it strictly a civil remedy? 

Senator Lee: There will be people that will be stepping up to discuss this. 

Mike Chausee, Associate State Director for Advocacy with AARP ND: (#1) 
(14:10-19:00) 

Rep. Magrum: Don't we have laws on the books already to cover this? 

Mike Chausee: We like this because it allows the civil action. It is hard to take criminal 
action on these people. A good number of them are family members or acquiesces. 

Rep. Magrum: So if someone believes they have been wronged what do they do? 

Mike Chausee: I think it depends upon the siltation and where they feel most comfortable 
going. This allows them an avenue to start the process. There are all sorts of people 
watching for this sort of thing and helping. They would need a lawyer when it got into court 
probably. 

Representative Klemin: I think Rep. Magrum has a good point. It is already in existing law. 
You have to prove fraud by clear and convincing evidence which is in this section. Statute 
of Limitation of four years is less probably than the six years under which a civil action could 
be brought? Why do we need this statute when you can do all of these things already? 

Mike Chausee: Without seeing that I do not know the answer to that. I don't know. I think it 
allows more specifics and spells it out in detail. People in the guardianship world have 
thought this was a pretty good deal and they know those laws pretty well . 

Representative Klemin: I am wondering why the conservator can 't bring this action? What 
is extra damages for exploitation? 

Mike Chausee: I think those details could be worked out in here and we would be ok with 
that. 
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Representative Klemin: What would you consider to be actual damages for exploitation? 

Mike Chausee: Money lost would be actual damages. In many cases that can be proven 
with bank accounts and security transfers etc. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: How do you avoid the scenario where someone makes an 
investment with a financial investor when it might have been done in good faith. Is there any 
mechanism where those things are not allowed to be caught up in the action? 

Mike Clausee: The Burden of Proof and the clear and convincing evidence. 

Susan Beehler, Morton County Resident: (26:46) In 2005 my mother broke her hip and 
she became very fearful and did not want to be alone. There were three daughters living 
here and one of my sisters is a professional care giver. Through that care giving she has 
received cars, money and household goods. I had always admired it and thought she was a 
good person . In working with my mother it came to light that she is a professional at getting 
what she wanted for herself and her family. Went into detail how things went downhill from 
there on and she acquired her assets. Discussed how I tried to intervene on my mother's 
behalf was that I needed to prove her incompetent and my mother hated that idea so I did 
not do that. Working with North Central Regional Health on this I realized what poor laws we 
have in regards to protecting vulnerable adults. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Do you th ink this bill would have helped? 

Susan Beehler: That is my story. The pol ice department does not even know how to deal 
with these situations. When you are in a family situation this makes it harder. This law would 
help with this. I think there should be a study on it. 

Representative Klemin: Reading through the persons who could bring a complaint this list 
of people that could bring this action does not include someone like yourself who was the 
sister of the person or does it include other member of the public? 

Susan Beehler: I understand that about the bill. This is a problem that has many facets to 
it and we should look at those. That is why I think it is worthy of a study. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Did your mother want you to look into the situation? 

Susan Beehler: My mother just said let's all get along. Because it was money; I was more 
concerned about her care. I even went so far as to check on the corner and they never even 
come to the place where the person dies. It is based on the officer that responds or the 
ambulance? 

Chairman K. Koppelman : There is a provision in the bill that allows any person acting on 
behalf of the vulnerable adult with the consent of the vulnerable adult? If this bill had been 
law and your mom said hey I agree something is going on here; please help me and act in 
my behalf, then you may have been able to help? 
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Susan Beehler: A vulnerable adult is vulnerable and they do not make decisions so I think 
it is worthy of a study. 

Rep. Magrum: I think the person who is the personal representative; and there will always 
be persons questioning that. There are a ton of laws already. 

Susan Beehler: Something has to be done. There is no reason why we shouldn't have that 
for adults. 

Rep. Magrum: I don't think we should just be making more laws. I see those situations like 
yours and that happens a lot. You would have to prove that your mother is unfit. I don't think 
the government should get into the middle of this. 

Susan Beehler: You are elected as a law maker and that is your job. 

Opposition: None 

Neutral: None 

Hearing closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the definition of financial exploitation of vulnerable adults; and to 
provide a penalty. 

Minutes: 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Opened the meeting on SB 2163. 

Representative Klemin: (#1) (1 :03) Went over proposed amendment. This was proposed 
by AARP on financial exploitation of vulnerable adults. This has to do with the civil remedy 
for financial exploitation and damages. Changed four years to six since this is a fraud action 
and the general statute of limitations for fraud is six years. 

Motion made to move the amendment by Rep. Klemin; Seconded by Rep. Satrom 

Discussion: 

Chairman K. Koppelman: You also removed Subsection 5? 

Representative Klemin: Lines 6-8 have to do with an award of exemplary damages in an 
appropriate case so that whole section 32-03.2-11 applies to the procedure you have to follow 
in court in order to get exemplary damages and subsection 5 is just part of that so I don't 
know why they just limited it to that so that whole section applies. Discussed how this 
applies. 

Voice Vote Carried. 

Do Pass as Amended Motion made by Representative Hanson: Seconded by 
Representative Maragos: 

Discussion: 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: 2322 is basically set for the security commissioners role and 
authority in these cases. 2335 lays out the criminal side of vulnerable adult abuse and 2163 
deals with the civil side. 

Representative Klemin: There is not separate part of the law that provides for civil remedy 
for financial exploitation. 

Representative Nelson: These three deal with the age 65. The first one there is no 
convincing proof that there is a crime. The second one under criminal you have that burden 
of proof for a criminal conviction that this has to have taken place beyond a reasonable doubt, 
but here on civil the 65 isn't there because families would just come in and the favorite son 
would get the four quarters of land and they would say dad was over 65 when he did this and 
suddenly you would have a case. Her you have to show the person is a vulnerable adult 
regardless of age. 

Representative Klemin: This has to be proven by clear and convincing evidence which is 
the highest civil standard. 

Roll Call Vote: 12 Yes 1 No 2 Absent Carrier: Representative Klemin 

Closed. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2163 

Page 1, line 20, after "guardian" insert "or conservator" 

Page 2, line 3, replace the first "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 3, replace "including" with "and" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "conservator devoted to the litigation of a claim" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "brought under this section" with "guardian ad !item if appointed by the 
court" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "subsection 5 of' 

Page 2, line 10, replace "four" with "six" 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2163, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Rep. K. Koppelman, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2163 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 20, after "guardian" insert "or conservator" 

Page 2, line 3, replace the first "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 3, replace "including" with "and" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "conservator devoted to the litigation of a claim" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "brought under this section" with "guardian ad litem if appointed by 
the court" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "subsection 5 of' 

Page 2, line 10, replace "four" with "six" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Testimony 
Senate Bill 2163 - Department of Human Services 

Senate Human Services Committee 
Senator Judy Lee, Chairman 

January 17, 2017 

Chairman Lee, and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I 

am Michelle Gayette, Elder Rights Program Administrator for Aging Services 

Division, for the Department of Human Services (Department). I appear to 

provide information and request an amendment to Senate Bill 2163. 

The Aging Services Division administers the Vulnerable Adult Protective 

Services (VAPS) program which addresses the safety of vulnerable adults 

who are at-risk of harm due to the presence or threat of abuse, neglett, or 

exploitation. The program is offered statewide through the North Dakota 

Department of Human Services' regional human service centers or through 

local partner agencies. 

Department staff reviewed Senate Bill 2163 and identified language in the 

Bill that may impact eligibility for vulnerable adult protective services. The 

Department is requesting to keep the current definition of abuse in 

subsection 1 of 50-25.2-01 because it is part of all-encompassing language 

used throughout this chapter to describe individuals who may be the 

"subject of abuse or neglect". The definition of abuse and neglect are used 

to determine who qualifies to receive vulnerable adult protective services. 

Removing financial exploitation from the definition of abuse may prohibit 

VAPS staff from assisting in financial exploitation matters because it would 

no longer be part of the definition of "abuse". Further, adding "or" on page 

1, line 9 before sexual abuse or exploitation, may be interpreted as only 

referring to sexual exploitation and would not be fully inclusive of all forms 

of exploitation. 

Page No. 1 
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The Department is also requesting to add language to the definition of 

financial exploitation in subsection 7 of 50-25.2-01 to encompass an 

additional form of exploitation that may occur and is also requesting that the 

definition of vulnerable adult in subsection 17 of 50-25.2-01 remain as 

currently written. 

"Substantial" mental or functional impairments are defined in subsections 15 

and 16 of 50-25.2-01 and are more accurate in describing the population 

served. Using the words "unable to protect oneself from abuse, neglect, or 

financial exploitation" may limit the assistance VAPS could provide. The 

courts have recognized that someone with dementia or other cognitive 

issues may be considered impaired at times, but not necessarily a 

permanent condition and; therefore, at times of coherence are still able to 

protect themselves. This may impact program eligibility and the civil 

remedy for financial exploitation recoveries if cognitive abilities of the 

vulnerable adult are in question. 

The Department has prepared two amendments for the committee to 

consider: 

• Both amendments: 

o Amend the title of Senate Bill 2163 on page 1, lines 3 and 4. 

o Remove lines 6-10 to leave the definition of abuse as currently 

written in subsection 1 of section 50-25.2-01 

o Add "use or receipt of services provided by the vulnerable adult 

without just compensation" to the definition of "financial 

exploitation" in subsection 7 of section 50-25.2-01 

o Remove lines 17-21 to leave the definition of "vulnerable adult" 

as currently written in subsection 17 of section 50-25.2-01 
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• Amendment A adds a definition of vulnerable adult to the proposed 

civil remedy section for financial exploitation so that the definition only 

applies to this section. The definition of "vulnerable adult" would be 

"an adult who is unable to protect oneself from financial exploitation 

by others because of a mental or functional impairment." 

• Amendment B does not add the definition of vulnerable adult to the 

proposed civil remedy section for financial exploitation as the current 

definition of vulnerable adult would be used. "Vulnerable adult" is 

currently defined as "an adult who has a substantial mental or 

functional impairment." 

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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Proposed Amendments to Senate Bill No. 2163 

Page 1, line 3, replace "subsections" with "subsection" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "1," 

Page 1, line 3, remove ", and 17" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "definitions" with "definition" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "abuse," 

Page 1, line 4, remove ", and vulnerable adult" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 10 

Amendment A 

Page 1, line 13, after "means" insert "use or receipt of services provided by the 
vulnerable adult without just compensation, " 

Page 1, remove lines 17 through 21 

Page 2 , after line 20 insert: 

"5. For purposes of th is section, "Vulnerable adult" means an adult who 
is unable to protect oneself from financial exploitation by others 
because of a mental or functional impairment. " 

Renumber accordingly 

., 
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Proposed Amendments to Senate Bill No. 2163 

Page 1, line 3, replace "subsections" with "subsection" 

Page 1, line 3, remove "1," 

Page 1, line 3, remove ", and 17" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "definitions" with "definition" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "abuse," 

Page 1, line 4, remove ", and vulnerable adult" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 10 

Amendment B 

Page 1, line 13, after "means" insert "use or receipt of services provided by the 
vulnerable adult without just compensation, " 

Page 1, remove lines 17 through 21 

Renumber accordingly 
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SB 2163 - Penalty for Financial Abuse of Vulnerable Adults 

Jan. 17,2017 
Senate Human Services Committee 
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Chairman Lee, Members of the Senate Human Services Committee, My name is Mike 
Chaussee, Associate State Director for Advocacy with AARP North Dakota. We are here 
to provide support for SB 2163. 

Con artists, acquaintances, paid caregivers, neighbors and even family members have 
made financial abuse of seniors a multi-billion dollar industry. A study commissioned by 
MetLife Mature Market Institute in 2011, showed the estimated annual loss by victims at 
$2.9 billion. That's based solely on cases that the media reported. And the study did not 
include the pain and suffering of the victims. Nor did it include the likely tens of billions of 
dollars spent on indirect costs - like money lost in interest, for additional medical care or 
social services. Since then, technology has only made it easier for the scammers. 

To further illustrate the problem we found information from the National Adult Protective 
Services Organization. It reports one in 20 older adults say they were financially 
mistreated in the recent past. And that number is much lower than the actual number of 
crimes being committed. NAPSO also reports only one in 44 cases of financial abuse is 
ever reported. The organization also finds that seniors aren't the only ones who pay for 
the crimes. It says almost one in 10 victims will turn to Medicaid as a direct result of losing 
their money. 

What makes this population vulnerable? They're good targets. Many live alone, making 
them vulnerable. They're more trusting and cognitively can have trouble spotting scams. 
Plus, they have money. 

Knowing this, AARP has a long history of fighting for protections against elder financial 
abuse. We support efforts to dissuade people from targeting vulnerable individuals and 
the general public. That is why we launched the Fraud Watch Network 
(www.fraudwatchnetwork.org). It is AARPs nationwide effort to ensure all individuals can 
spot scams, protect themselves, and even report suspected scamming or fraudulent 
activity. 

We also support helping victims recover what they've lost. We believe SB 2163 will help 
prevent abuse and provide support to remedy instances of abuse and exploitation. 
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We also think it's important that the action can be brought by people on the vulnerable 
adult's behalf. The MetLife Study shows most victims are already receiving some sort of 
home care. And, because of vulnerability or fear, they are less likely to pursue criminal 
charges or civil damages. 

This bill will add another layer of protection - and potentially restitution - for vulnerable 
adults. We encourage a do pass on SB 2163. 

• 

• 
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NASAA MODEL LEGISLATION OR REGULATION TO PROTECT VULNERABLE 
ADULTS FROM FINANCIAL EXPLOITATION 

Adopted January 2 2, 2016 

Prefatory note: 

Jurisdictions considering this model legislation or regulation, whether through legislative sessions 
or rulemaking, may need to consider certain small changes to terms, particularly with regard to 
certain designated terms. For example, this model refers to the "commissioner of securities" or 
"state securities commissioner" but in certain jurisdictions, that position may be held by a director 
of securities, or commissioner of banking and securities, or commissioner of corporations. 
Furthermore, this model refers to Adult Protective Services, but certain jurisdictions may require 
a more specific reference to the agency by exact name. Finally, with regard to Section 2 
(Definitions), certain jurisdictions may use different defined terms (e.g. salesmen instead of 
broker-dealer agents); therefore, Section 2 may require certain slight changes to the definitions to 
align with existing securities statutes. 

An Act to Protect Vulnerable Adults from Financial Exploitation. 

Section 1. Short title. Sections_ to_ may be cited as "An Act to Protect Vulnerable 
Adults from Financial Exploitation" and in this chapter as this act. 

Section 2. Definitions. In this act, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) "Agent" shall have the same meaning as in [insert state code section]. 

(2) "Broker-dealer" shall have the same meaning as in [insert state code section]. 

(3) "Eligible adult" means: 

(a) a person sixty-five years of age or older; or 
(b) a person subject to [insert state Adult Protective Services statute] 

( 4) "Financial exploitation" means: 

(a) the wrongful or unauthorized taking, withholding, appropriation, or use of money, 

assets or property of an eligible adult; or 

(b) any act or omission taken by a person, including through the use of a power of attorney, 
guardianship, or conservatorship of an eligible adult, to: 

i. Obtain control, through deception, intimidation or undue influence, over the 
eligible adult ' s money, assets or property to deprive the eligible adult of the 
ownership, use, benefit or possession of his or her money, assets or property; 
or 
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11. Convert money, assets or property of the eligible adult to deprive such eligible 

adult of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his or her money, assets 

or property. 

(5) "Investment Adviser" shall have the same meaning as in [insert state code section]. 

(6) "Investment Adviser Representative" shall have the same meaning as in [insert state 

code section]. 

(7) "Qualified individual" means any agent, investment adviser representative or person 

who serves in a supervisory, compliance, or legal capacity for a broker-dealer or 

investment adviser. 

Section 3. Governmental Disclosures. If a qualified individual reasonably believes that 
financial exploitation of an eligible adult may have occurred, may have been attempted, or is 
being attempted, the qualified individual shall promptly notify Adult Protective Services and the 
commissioner of securities (collectively "the Agencies"). 

Section 4. Immunity for Governmental Disclosures. A qualified individual that in good faith 
and exercising reasonable care makes a disclosure of information pursuant to section 3 shall be 
immune from administrative or civil liability that might otherwise arise from such disclosure or 
for any failure to notify the customer of the disclosure. 

Section 5. Third-Party Disclosures. If a qualified individual reasonably believes that financial 
exploitation of an eligible adult may have occurred, may have been attempted, or is being 
attempted, a qualified individual may notify any third party previously designated by the el igible 
adult. Disclosure may not be made to any designated third party that is suspected of financial 
exploitation or other abuse of the eligible adult. 

Section 6. Immunity for Third-Party Disclosures. A qualified individual that, in good faith 
and exercising reasonable care, complies with section 5 shall be immune from any administrative 
or civil liability that might otherwise arise from such disclosure. 

Section 7. Delaying Disbursements. (1) A broker-dealer or investment adviser may delay a 
disbursement from an account of an eligible adult or an account on which an eligible adult is a 
beneficiary if: 

(a) the broker-dealer, investment adviser, or qualified individual reasonably believes, 

after initiating an internal review of the requested disbursement and the suspected 

financial exploitation, that the requested disbursement may result in financial 

exploitation of an eligible adult; and 

(b) the broker-dealer or investment adviser: 
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1. Immediately, but in no event more than two business days after the requested 
disbursement, provides written notification of the delay and the reason for the 
delay to all parties authorized to transact business on the account, unless any 
such party is reasonably believed to have engaged in suspected or attempted 
financial exploitation of the eligible adult; 

ii. Immediately, but in no event more than two business days after the requested 
disbursement, notifies the Agencies; and 

iii. Continues its internal review of the suspected or attempted financial 
exploitation of the eligible adult, as necessary, and reports the investigation's 
results to the Agencies within seven business days after the requested 
disbursement. 

(2) Any delay of a disbursement as authorized by this section will expire upon the sooner of: 

(a) a determination by the broker-dealer or investment adviser that the disbursement will 
not result in financial exploitation of the eligible adult; or 

(b) fifteen business days after the date on which the broker-dealer or investment adviser 
first delayed disbursement of the funds, unless either of the Agencies requests that the 
broker-dealer or investment adviser extend the delay, in which case the delay shall 
expire no more than twenty-five business days after the date on which the broker
dealer or investment adviser first delayed disbursement of the funds unless sooner 
terminated by either of the agencies or an order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(3) A court of competent jurisdiction may enter an order extending the delay of the 
disbursement of funds or may order other protective relief based on the petition of the 
commissioner of securities, Adult Protective Services, the broker-dealer or investment 
adviser that initiated the delay under this Section 7, or other interested party. 

Section 8. Immunity for Delaying Disbursements. A broker-dealer or investment adviser that, 
in good faith and exercising reasonable care, complies with section 7 shall be immune from any 
administrative or civil liability that might otherwise arise from such delay in a disbursement in 
accordance with this section. 

Section 9. Records. A broker-dealer or investment adviser shall provide access to or copies of 
records that are relevant to the suspected or attempted financial exploitation of an eligible adult 
to agencies charged with administering state adult protective services laws and to law 
enforcement, either as part of a referral to the agency or to law enforcement, or upon request of 
the agency or law enforcement pursuant to an investigation. The records may include historical 
records as well as records relating to the most recent transaction or transactions that may 
comprise financial exploitation of an eligible adult. All records made available to agencies under 
this section shall not be considered a public record as defined in [State public records law]. 
Nothing in this provision shall limit or otherwise impede the authority of the state securities 
commissioner to access or examine the books and records of broker-dealers and investment 
advisers as otherwise provided by law. 
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Real Possibilities in 

North Dakota 
SB 2163 - Penalty for Financial Abuse of Vulnerable Adults 

March 20, 2017 
House Judiciary Committee 

Mike Chaussee, AARP ND - mchaussee@aarp.org 

Chairman Koppelman, Members of the House Judiciary Committee, my name is Mike 
Chaussee, Associate State Director for Advocacy with AARP North Dakota. We are here 
to provide support for SB 2163 (and the other bills targeting financial exploitation of 
vulnerable North Dakotans). 

Con artists, acquaintances, paid caregivers, neighbors and even family members have 
made financial abuse of seniors a multi-billion dollar industry. A study commissioned by 
MetLife Mature Market Institute in 2011, showed the estimated annual loss by victims at 
$2.9 billion. That's based solely on cases that the media reported . And the study did not 
include the pain and suffering of the victims. Nor did it include the likely tens of billions of 
dollars spent on indirect costs - like money lost in interest, for additional medical care or 
social services. Since then, technology has only made it easier for the scammers. 

To further illustrate the problem we found information from the National Adult Protective 
Services Association (NAPSA). It reports one in 20 older adults say they were financially 
mistreated in the recent past. And that number is much lower than the actual number of 
crimes being committed. NAPSA also reports only one in 44 cases of financial abuse is 
ever reported. The organization also finds that seniors aren't the only ones who pay for 
the crimes. It says almost one in 10 victims will turn to Medicaid as a direct result of losing 
their money. 

What makes this population vulnerable? They're good targets. Many live alone, making 
them vulnerable. They're more trusting and cognitively can have trouble spotting scams. 
Plus, they have money. 

Knowing this, AARP has a long history of fighting for protections against elder financial 
abuse. We _support efforts to dissuade people from targeting vulnerable individuals and 
the general public. That is why we launched the Fraud Watch Network 
(www.fraudwatchnetwork.org). It is AARPs nationwide effort to ensure all individuals can 
spot scams, protect themselves, and even report suspected scamming or fraudulent 
activity . 

We also support helping victims recover what they've lost. We believe SB 2163 will help 
prevent abuse and provide support to remedy instances of abuse and exploitation. 

J 



We also think it's important that the action can be brought by people on behalf of the • 
vulnerable adult. The MetLife Study shows most victims are already receiving some sort 
of home care. And, because of vulnerability or fear, they are less likely to pursue criminal 
charges or civil damages. 

Vulnerable people need advocates who are willing to speak up for them and create 
policies to support them. We encourage a do pass on SB 2163. 

Thank you, 

Mike 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2163 

Page 1, line 20, after "guardian" insert "or conservator" 

Page 2, line 3, replace the first "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 3, replace "including" with "and" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "conservator devoted to the litigation of a claim" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "brought under this section" with "guardian ad litem if appointed by the 
court" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "subsection 5 of" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "four" with "six" 

Renumber accordingly 
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